
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 
 

 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
Date & Time - Wednesday, 9 September 2020 at 6.30 pm 
Venue - This will be a meeting held in line with The 

Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & 
Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2020 
 
The meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and 
streamed live, via the following link: 

 
  www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/ 

 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), J R Astill, A C Beal, M D Booth 
(Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, A C Cronin, R Grocock, J L King, 
J D McLean, N H Pepper, P A Redgate, G P Scalese, A C Tennant, 
S C Walsh and D J Wilkinson 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may 
be appointed only from members who are not on the Cabinet.  
Substitutions apply for individual meetings only.  
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 
silent 

Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   4 September 2020 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

A G E N D A 
 
1  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2  Minutes   
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings: 

 

a)   Performance Monitoring Panel - 8 July 2020 -  
Minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel  held 
on 8 July 2020 (copy enclosed) 

(Pages 
3 - 12) 

b)   Performance Monitoring Panel - 13 July 2020 -  
Minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel held 
on 13 July 2020 (copy enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
13 - 20) 

3  Declaration of Interests.   
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest and leave the meeting without participating in 
any discussion or making a statement on the item, except where a 
councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation. 
 

 

4  Questions asked under Standing Order 6 
  

 

5  Tracking of Recommendations   
To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

6  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel.  
 

 

7  Key Decision Plan   
To note the current Key Decision Plan 
 

(Pages 
21 - 26) 

8  Marketing of Industrial Units  
To set out the methodology for using commercial agents to provide 
targeted and additional resource to support the letting and management 
of commercial property (Report of the Interim Property Asset Services 
Manager enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
27 - 32) 

9  Digital Work Programme   
The Panel will receive a presentation from the Communications 
Manager (Shaun Gibbons). 
 

 

10  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme   
To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
(report of the Executive Manager – Governance (Deputy Monitoring 
Officer) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
33 - 40) 

11  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

Page 2



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in line with 
The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on 
Wednesday, 8 July 2020 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

M D Booth (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

J R Astill 
A C Beal 
C J T H Brewis 
A C Cronin 
R Grocock 
 

J L King 
J D McLean 
A M Newton 
N H Pepper 
P A Redgate 
 

G P Scalese 
S C Walsh 
D J Wilkinson 
 

  
 
In Attendance:  The Executive Manager Governance, the Executive Manager Growth, 
the Executive Manager Delivery, the Place Manager, the Communities Manager, the 
Inward Investment Manager, the Environmental Services Manager, the Innovation, 
Change and Performance Manager, the Delivery Unit Project Manager, the 
Democratic Services Manager and the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A C Tennant  
 
 
 Action By 

1 MINUTES   

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel, held on 29 January 2020 and the 
minutes of the Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel held on 14 January 2020. 
 
The following issues were raised, with regard to the meeting on 
29 January 2020: 
 

 Members noted that further information on the Digital Work 
Programme had been requested.  Some information had been 
fed back to members in March, and it was noted that further 
information would be provided at the next Panel meeting in 
September. 

 Information on fly tipping incidents, detailed within the 
Performance Overview  report, only included incidents where 
the Council had a clear responsibility to clear.  This did not 
include fly tipping incidents on private land, and members 
requested that in future, this information also be included, in 
order to have a better understanding of the situation across 
the district. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RB  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2a)



- 2 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 

Monitoring Panel held on 29 January 2020 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record, as soon as reasonably practical 
after the meeting; 

 
b) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 

Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 14 
January 2020 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record, 
as soon as reasonably practical after the meeting.  

   

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were none.   

   

3 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   

  

 There were none.   

   

4 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS   

  

 There were none.   

   

5 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL.  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

6 KEY DECISION PLAN   

  

 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 26 
June 2020. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan issued on 26 June 2020 be noted.  

 

   

7 WORK OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM DURING THE 
COVID PANDEMIC  

 

  

 The Executive Manager Governance, and the Place Manager 
provided the Panel with a presentation on the work of the Senior 
Management Team during the COVID-19 Pandemic.   
 
It laid out the immediate priorities; how the Authority was dealing 
with issues internally and working with partners; how decision 

 

Page 4



- 3 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

making was able to continue; details of a temporary place-based 
management arrangement for the duration of the recovery; how 
the Authority had responded to the needs of the community and 
continued to provide services; and a timeline of the phased work 
to bring the Authority from a response phase, through recovery to 
the transition – Covid Business as Usual phase. 
 
Members considered the update and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 If there was a second spike in infections, were there any plans 
in place to address this? 
Members were advised that an outbreak management board 
was working at the Lincolnshire Resiliance Forum level – any 
local outbreaks would be dealt with at this level.  In addition, 
the Government could target particular areas where there 
were any future significant outbreaks. 

 

 What was Covid Business as Usual likely to be? 
Officers responded that this was currently a difficult question 
to give a clear answer on.  The Authority would be working in 
a different way for some time.  ‘Business as Usual’-type work 
would be delivered, but not in the way it was normally 
undertaken.  Staff would continue to work at home for the 
foreseeable future.  Virtual meetings were being undertaken, 
and legislation was available until May 2021 to continue in this 
way.  

 

 Would it be possible for officers eventually to work in a Covid-
secure way? 
Detailed risk assessments with regard to return to work were 
almost complete.  Staff would have to socially distance, and 
this would mean that the number of staff in the office would be 
reduced. 

 

 Had there been any incidence of officer stress-related 
absence? 
Officers advised that they were not aware of any stress-related 
absences. 

 
Members thanked officers for all they had done in keeping 
members informed of the situation, and for the continued hard 
work in responding to the situation, and keeping services running. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.  

   

Page 5



- 4 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

8 QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE MONITORING   

  

 The Innovation, Change and Performance Manager provided the 
Panel with a presentation on using Performance to Inform Future 
Service Delivery.  The presentation explained how performance 
was currently measured, and the need for changes in the future.  
The changes would assist in truly understanding what residents 
wanted from Council services, would inform current and future 
decision making through the use of analysis and modelling, and 
would inform and prioritise areas for innovation, change and 
improvement.  Learning from the experience of Covid-19 would 
also feed into the process.      
 
Information on how this would be taken forward from August 
onwards was also provided, and officers advised that as part of 
the process, engagement would take place with the Portfolio 
Holder and the Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 
Members considered the update and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 The Chairman stated that he was happy that he and the 
Portfolio Holder would be consulted however, he also wanted 
all members to have input into the process. 

 

 Some members felt that performance could only be monitored 
by looking back at quarterly data, as well as looking at forward 
projections, and that a report should continue to be presented 
to meetings.  There was more work to be done in this area, 
some indicators needed to remain and consideration given to 
which were no longer required.  It was important to listen to 
residents, and the role of the Panel was to monitor the 
effectiveness of particular services 

o The needs of the Panel were acknowledged, 
although there would need to be some degree of 
change as measuring performance was to be done 
in a different way. 

 

 Members commented that the Covid-19 pandemic had 
highlighted a number of areas to be addressed, in particular 
the situation that some elderly and shielded individuals had 
found themselves in whilst isolating.   

o Officers responded that there was concern for all 
people in this situation and highlighted why it was 
very important to gain an insight into the 
requirements of those in greatest need, in order to 
address these issues.  The Covid-19 pandemic was 
a rare opportunity to understand vulnerabilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



- 5 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

within the district and to use this data to shape the 
current service, and the service in years to come. 

 

 Members asked whether the Authority had the financial 
resources to address the identified needs?  Was there a 
danger, in pursuing this course, of raising expectations that 
the Authority may then not be able to address due to financial 
constraints? 

o Officers stated that the aim was to shine a light on 
the residents of the district, to use the insight gained 
and then approach members, who would decide 
how resources should be allocated. 

 

 Members stated that there was a conflict going forward as to 
how performance would be scrutinised.  Some of the 
development work would sit within the remit of the Policy 
Development Panel, while the Performance Monitoring Panel’s 
remit would be to monitor how the work was carried out.  The 
question of who would scrutinise performance, and how this 
would be undertaken needed careful consideration.  In 
addition, it was felt that the Chairman and Vice Chairman of 
the Policy Development Panel should be involved in the 
process. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the proposals for future performance monitoring be agreed, 
taking into account the issues raised by the Panel.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RB  

   

9 REFUSE COLLECTION FROM PRIVATE DRIVES   

  

 The Environmental Services Manager provided the Panel with a 
presentation, updating on a recent decision that had been made 
regarding waste collection services from private roads.  The 
presentation detailed the decision that had been made, and 
discussed current practice, what the report changed, why private 
roads were an issue (as a service and for residents), what was 
being done about them, and what the next steps were. 
 
Members considered the update and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 It was assumed that in order to move forward with the 
proposals, indemnity agreements would be sought with all 
parties – what would happen with any new residents in the 
future? 

o Officers advised that it was important that 
agreement was reached with all residents, and that 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



- 6 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

this would be administered through management 
companies.  No two sites were the same, and 
officers would work with the legal team to identify if 
indemnity agreements were suitable for particular 
areas. 

 

 Members stated that, historically, there had been many 
problems with collection of waste from private drives.  Some of 
these related to past planning decisions which should be 
addressed going forward.  In addition, private drives were not 
able to receive the same services as others – the authority 
needed to work towards a solution to the problem that private 
drives created in the district, and to find ways to provide 
residents with a better service. 

 

 There were a number of issues that could be considered such 
as amending the present service and who carried it out, 
looking at all areas and the issues around each, and 
addressing relevant current policies such as early presentation 
of rubbish. 

o Officers commented that all options were being 
looked at with regard to identifying the problems, 
and what solutions were available.   

 
Members requested that a further update be provided in six 
months time. 
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the presentation be noted; and 
 
b) That a further update be provided to the Panel in six months 

time.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CP  

   

10 CRIME AND DISORDER, COMMUNITY SAFETY AND 
ENFORCEMENT  

 

  

 The Communities Manager provided the Panel with a 
presentation on the current situation with regard to community 
safety and enforcement. It provided information on the work of the 
Safer Lincolnshire Partnership (Domestic Abuse, Fraud, Modern 
Day Slavery, Anti-Social Behaviour and Reducing Offending); the 
work undertaken by South Holland Community Safety and 
Enforcement (with enforcement information for Environmental 
Protection, Licensing, Food, Health and Safety, Communities, 
Planning, Housing and Building Control); CCTV (which referred to 
the analysis report (to be circulated) detailing incident types for 
Spalding, Holbeach and Crowland, and work undertaken to 

EH  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



- 7 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

explore the information that Lincolnshire Police held relating to 
outcomes following arrest, with examples from incidents in 
Spalding, Holbeach and Crowland); and the work of Street 
Marshalls who had been temporarily introduced to assist with the 
reopening of the high street on 15 June 2020. 
 
Members considered the update and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Members commented that they had been asking for 
information around outcomes following arrests linked to the 
use of CCTV for some time, thanked the officer for the 
information provided and requested that this information 
continue to be provided. 

 

 Members asked how long the street marshalls would be 
deployed for. 

o Officers responded that the response around street 
marshalls was being closely monitored and that 
numbers would gradually reduce. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EH  

   

11 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   

  

 The Inward Investment Manager provided the Panel with a 
presentation on the current position with regard to Economic 
Development.  As a result of the Covid 19 pandemic, the team 
had been involved in the administration of the Small Business 
Grant, the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant, and the 
Discretionary Grant Fund, since early March.  Grants4Growth had 
continued to be administered throughout the lockdown period.  
The presentation also provided figures for South Holland on the 
number of staff furloughed and receiving benefits, support being 
provided to businesses within the area, and the situation going 
forward. 
 
Members considered the update and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 With regard to individuals that had been furloughed, what 
figure was this expected to reduce to? 

o Officers responded that the furlough figures were 
expected to stay fairly constant until early July.  
Figures for numbers of individuals coming off the 
scheme had not yet been released, but it was 

 

Page 9



- 8 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

expected that these would drop significantly. 
 

 What was the impact on the Council to provide leisure 
facilities? 

o The Place Manager stated that the Council was 
working with contractors until the Government 
confirmed that leisure facilities could re-open.   

 

 Was there any information on the number of businesses not 
claiming grants? 

o Officers advised that the team that administered 
Business Rates had details of those businesses that 
had not claimed grants – the Authority had done all 
it could to publicise the scheme, and it was still 
possible to claim. 

 

 Members were advised that the contract with Opportunity 
Peterborough had come to an end in May. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the update be noted.  

   

12 INDUSTRIAL UNITS   

  

 The Project Manager, Delivery Unit provided the Panel with a 
presentation on the current situation with regard to the Council’s 
commercial assets. 
 
The update was an interim update, with a more substantive report 
on commercial property to be presented to the next meeting in 
September 2020 – this would include information on approval of a 
new Lettings Policy, an update on Building Cell recovery, and 
details of the Asset Management Plan. 
 
The interim update provided some background on the new 
Lettings Policy, details of the current Commercial Property Estate, 
and the current position. 
 
Members considered the update and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Members stated that they were happy to see that the site in 
Railway Lane  had been tidied up, and that the Authority 
should continue to move forward with regard to industrial units 
as soon as possible. 

 

 Members asked whether, in the current climate, there was any 

 

Page 10



- 9 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8 
July 2020 

 

 

interest in commercial units within the district, or had demand 
tailed off? Also, would all leases now be on a formal, 
commercial footing? 

o Officers responded that there was currently little 
interest in commercial units at the present time, but 
that this might change once the situation around 
Covid 19 improved.  They also advised that work on  
leases for commercial estates would not be finalised 
by September, but that steady progress was being 
made.  

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the presentation be noted; and 
 
b) That a further update be provided to the Panel in September.  

   

13 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel. 
 
The Panel considered whether the existing Work Programme 
remained appropriate, and also the suggested revised dates for 
outstanding reports, in light of the Coronavirus pandemic.   
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the Work Programme provided by the Executive Manager 

Governance be noted; and 
 
b) That the new, revised dates for consideration of some of the 

outstanding items identified within the report be noted.  

 

   

14 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

 
(The meeting ended at 8.50 pm) 
(End of minutes) 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



- 10 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in line with 
The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on 
Monday, 13 July 2020 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

M D Booth (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

J R Astill 
A C Beal 
C J T H Brewis 
R Grocock 
 

J L King 
J D McLean 
N H Pepper 
P A Redgate 
 

G P Scalese 
A C Tennant 
S C Walsh 
D J Wilkinson 
 

  
 
In Attendance:  The Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), the Executive 
Manager – Governance, the Place Manager, the Environmental Services Manager, 
the Democratic Services Manager and the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

 
 Action By 

15 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

  

 The Panel was advised of the following substitution for this 
meeting only: 
 

 Councillor A M Newton was replacing Councillor A C 
Cronin  

 

   

16 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were no declarations of interest.   

   

17 CALL IN (RE-OPENING OF SOUTH HOLLAND'S MARKETS, 
AND SPALDING MARKET STALL PROVISION)  

 

  

 The Performance Monitoring Panel received a report advising that 
on 16 June 2020, the Cabinet had considered a report regarding 
the re-opening of South Holland markets and Spalding Market 
Stall Provision.  The following decision had been made by the 
Cabinet: 
 
1) That in order to secure the safe re-opening of South Holland 

District Council markets, in line with government guidance 

introduced due to Covid-19: 

 
a) The current practice of erecting and dismantling SHDC 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2b)



- 11 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

stalls at Spalding Tuesday and Saturday markets be 

suspended; 

b) The removal of trade waste by South Holland District 

Council at Holbeach, Long Sutton and Crowland markets 

be terminated, thereby making the service equitable across 

all markets; 

c) A book and pay system for traders who wish to stand at 

any SHDC market be introduced to enable a planned 

approach to market layouts each week and remove the 

need for cash handling, both of which assist with the 

opening of Covid-safe markets; 

d) In the event that, following the consultation referred to in 

Appendix B of the report, the current practice of erecting 

and dismantling stalls at the Spalding market is ended, the 

fees for Spalding traders be amended as shown at 

paragraph 1.20 of the report; 

e) A rent free period be introduced for traders until 31 July 

2020 to support the recovery of markets; 

f) Social distancing procedures be introduced at all markets 

including changing the layouts to accommodate the new 

government guidance; 

g) The market trader handbook be amended in line with the 

above recommendations; 

h) The following toilets be re-opened with an enhanced, 

hourly cleaning regime: 

a) Spalding Vine Street and Winfrey Avenue, Tuesday to 

Saturday 8am to 4pm; 

b) Long Sutton and Holbeach, Monday to Friday 8am – 

2pm 

 
2) That the Portfolio Holder for Place to authorised to: 

 
a) Designate a statutory market at Victoria Street car park 

should the volume of traders increase to such a point that it 

is deemed appropriate to enable the Spalding markets to 

operate safely in accordance with Governance guidance; 

and 

b) Make a recommendation to Full Council or the appropriate 

Chief Officer (in consultation with the Chief Executive) in 

relation to any proposed impact on employment arising 

Page 14



- 12 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

from the consultation process referred to in Appendix B; 

and  

 
3) That the Environmental Services Manager be authorised, in 

consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Place, to: 

a) Undertake the necessary consultation in relation to any 

proposed impact on employment referred to in Appendix B 

of the report; 

b) Change fees as set out; 

c) Procure and implement a book and pay system; 

d) To continue to monitor the government guidance as part of 

the Covid-19 response and make amendments alongside 

guidance changes, as requested; 

e) Establish a Covid compliant market in the Market Place, 

Long Sutton if a road closure order can be obtained via the 

local Highway Authority and  arrangements prove viable 

and achievable.  If no such closure can be obtained the 

market to be established in the nearby council owned car 

park. 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the decision had 
been called in by Councillors A M Newton, R Gibson and M 
Hasan, for consideration by the Performance Monitoring Panel.  
The report cited the reason why the decision should be called in 
as: 
 
‘We do not feel full and proper information has been available to 
all’. 
 
The Councillors considered the following alternative decision 
should be made: 
 
‘Stalls should continue to be provided at Spalding market until the 
end of this financial year, or until proper and meaningful 
discussion is held with market traders, or their representatives’. 
 
The report also laid out the following options available to the 
Panel, following consideration of all the information: 
 
a) To take no further action in relation to the call in; 

b) To refer the proposed decision back to Cabinet, setting out in 

writing the nature of its concerns; and 

c) If, having taken officer advice, the Panel considers that the 

Page 15



- 13 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

decision is contrary to the Policy Framework or Budget, it may 

refer the matter to full Council.  (The Panel was advised by 

officers that this option was not viable as the decision had not 

been contrary to the Policy Framework or Budget). 

 
The initiators of the call-in, the Portfolio Holder for Place and 

relevant officers were all given the opportunity to put forward their 

views on, and respond to the issue under discussion, and 

members of the Panel were also able to ask questions. 

 

During discussion of the issues, it was agreed that debate could 

be undertaken without referencing the exempt information 

specifically, and there was therefore no need for the meeting to 

go into private session. 

 

The Councillors who called the decision in raised the following 

key points as their reasons for call-in: 

 

 Full and proper information had not been available to all; 

 Lack of consultation between the Council and the market 

traders and the traders’ representatives; 

 Too short a timescale – 1) for consultation with traders and 

councillors; and 2) between the time the decision was made 

and markets re-opening again – this had not allowed traders 

sufficient time to source their own stalls; 

 The members understood that the authority had to comply with 

Government guidelines, but markets at other authorities had 

continued to trade during the COVID period; 

 Other authorities were continuing to erect stalls for stall 

holders; 

 No trial had been undertaken to see if the erection of market 

stalls could be done safely; 

 It was difficult for some stall holders to erect their own stalls; 

 A robust assessment had not been undertaken; 

 Had costs been challenged? 

 Losing the market would have an adverse effect on the town 

centre – it was felt that one of the main reasons for the 

decision was to cut costs, that there was no vision for the 

future, and that the decision had been rushed, not giving 

members enough time to respond; 

 The future of the market needed to be considered as part of 

future plans for the town centre; 

 Changes detailed within the decision made by the Cabinet 

seem permanent and not solely as a reaction to the current 

pandemic. 

Page 16



- 14 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

 

Panel members raised the following issues: 

 

 There was concern that there was a threat to the Spalding 

market; 

 It was clarified that the call-in related specifically to the 

erection of market stalls at Spalding market, and that these 

decisions had been made as part of wider decisions relating to 

markets.  Some members felt that the right decision had been 

made in response to the Covid pandemic, that there had been 

very short notice given allowing markets to re-open and that 

the short consultation period was therefore inevitable.  They 

also felt that the decision was not permanent, and that the 

decision made had been Covid-related; 

 Some members questioned the risk assessment, and the fact 

that it had been verbal rather than written – the markets were 

outdoors, spaced as guidance dictated and that the erection of 

the stalls was a low-risk role;  

 Government guidance impacted upon all businesses across 

the area, with no-one being unaffected.  The first priority 

should be to follow the guidance available at the time; 

 Some members stated that they were hopeful for the Council’s 

Spalding town centre improvement plans, which included the 

market; 

 

The Portfolio Holder for Place responded to the call-in, and issues 

raised by members as follows: 

 

 The Cabinet decision has been based on the correct advice 

from officers, and alongside guidance at the time, and had 

been the correct one in the circumstances that the authority 

had been confronted with; 

 The Portfolio Holder did not wish to debate operational staffing 

matters, as this was the responsibility of officers however, he 

stated that the nature of the working practices, and the 

number of individuals employed to undertake them was 

correct; 

 With regard to the way in which other authorities were 

operating their markets, he stated that all councils dealt with 

things differently and often had different budgets; 

 Spalding market was not under threat as a result of the 

Cabinet’s decision, and it did form part of the long term 

proposals for the Spalding town centre; 

 The changes proposed were not permanent; 

 Traders often commented on the negative impact of stalls 

Page 17



- 15 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

being erected and then being left empty  

 

Officers responded to the call-in, and issues raised by members 

as follows: 

 

The Environmental Services Manager stated: 

 No decision had been made to dispense of the market stalls; 

 With regard to returning to work, whilst maintaining social 

distancing, legislation still stated a requirement for distancing 

of 2 metres, reduced to 1 metre in mitigating circumstances 

only.  There was a need to protect traders, workers and 

businesses, and ensure their safety.  There was a need to do 

a risk assessment, and to continue to do this alongside 

government guidance; 

 Markets did form part of the Spalding town centre 

management programme; 

 With regard to the current risk assessment for stalls not being 

erected during the Covid period being verbal rather than 

written, it was stated that it had been a verbal process as it 

was an iterative process, reviewed with each change in 

government guidance.  Having a formally written assessment 

would be done when the risk had been assessed as 

appropriate to bring individuals formally back into that role, 

and this was not possible currently as it was considered 

currently too high risk in the current Covid crisis, and given the 

individual circumstances of SHDC and its employees; 

 With regard to timescales, government guidance was moving 

very quickly.  The authority would have liked more time to 

implement the changes, but this had not been possible.  The 

Government had advised in late May that markets could re-

open in June.  Traders had wanted to return when it was as 

safe as possible to do so.  They had also been contacted in 

person to ensure that they knew what the authority was doing, 

and why.  The market had returned successfully although 

some traders had not wished to return. 

 

The Place Manager stated: 

 The Place Manager stated that she was the lead officer for the 

market towns improvement plan, and that prior to the Covid 

pandemic, a very successful event had been held with regard 

to identifying opportunities for the town.  All plans would 

include the market traders, and the market was not solely 

specific to its stalls and structure.  There was a whole package 

of improvements that the Council could look at, including 

promotion of the towns, including the markets themselves.  As 

Page 18



- 16 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

manager, she had undertaken a number of conversations with 

market representatives from Spalding, and also met with stall 

holders in the town centre to discuss layouts – these 

conversations had been positive and had resulted in other 

options being put forward.  None of the representatives had 

stated that the market was a lost cause, or that nothing could 

be done about it. 

 

Members considered the information, and in view of the options 

available to the Panel, the following two motions were proposed 

and subsequently voted upon: 

 

First motion – Proposed by Councillor J Astill and seconded by 

Councillor A C Beal: 

  That the Panel take no further action in relation to the call in  

The Panel voted on this first motion, and the proposal was 

defeated. 

 

Second motion – Proposed by Councillor A M Newton and 

seconded by Councillor S Walsh; 

 Stalls should continue to be provided at Spalding market until 

the end of this financial year, or until proper and meaningful 

discussion is held with market traders, or their representatives, 

and that the whole issue be subject to a more thorough 

examination to enable the council to find a way to rebuild the 

Spalding market into an attractive, viable market, supporting 

the economic viability of the district and the town which would 

help support aims in our corporate plan. 

The Panel voted on this second motion, and the proposal was 

carried. 

 

AGREED: 

 

That the decision made by the Cabinet on 16 June 2020 be 

referred back to the Cabinet, with the following response from the 

Performance Monitoring Panel: 

 

 Stalls should continue to be provided at Spalding market until 

the end of this financial year, or until proper and meaningful 

discussion is held with market traders, or their representatives, 

and that the whole issue be subject to a more thorough 

examination to enable the council to find a way to rebuild the 

Spalding market into an attractive, viable market, supporting 

the economic viability of the district and the town which would 

help support aims in our corporate plan.  

   

Page 19



- 17 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 July 2020 

 

 

 

18 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

 
(The meeting ended at 8.02 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 2 September 2020 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Electrical 
Materials 
 

To award a contract for an electrical 
materials provider. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Housing Landlord 
Manager or any other 
officer with delegation 

Before 30 Sep 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Place 
 
 
Capital Spend in 
Environmental 
Services 
 

Detail of the capital programme for 
environmental services, as agreed in 
the budget, and its intended spend 
 

 
 
 
 

 Executive Director - 
Commercialisation (S151) 
or any other officer with 
delegation, Not before 4th 
Sep 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
and Facilities 
 
 
Community 
Lottery 
 

To seek approval to set up South 
Holland Community Lottery 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 15 Sep 2020 or 
Leader 
 

P
age 22



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
and Facilities 
 
 
Plumbing and 
General 
Maintenance 
Contract 
 

The procurement of a contract to 
undertake works to the Councils 
assets is required. The contract will 
allow use by the HRA if required 
 

 
 
 
 

 Executive Director - 
Commercialisation (S151) 
or any other officer with 
delegation, Before 30 Sep 
2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Electrical Works 
Contract 
 

There is a requirement to procure a 
contract for works to commercial 
assets owned by the Council. The 
contract is intended to enable 
occasional use if required for the 
Councils properties 
 

 
 
 
 

 Executive Director - 
Commercialisation (S151) 
or any other officer with 
delegation, Before 30 Sep 
2020 
 

P
age 23



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Contract for 
Maintenance of 
Alarms and 
Associated 
Equipment & 
Telecare Service 
in Sheltered 
Housing 
properties 
 

New contract following expiry of 
existing contract to maintain wellbeing 
alarm equipment, and administer 
telecare service 
 

 
 
 
 

 Housing Landlord 
Manager or any other 
officer with delegation, Not 
before 12th Oct 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Housing 
Assistance Policy 
 

To update policies and enable South 
Holland District Council to further 
assist a range of vulnerable and/or 
disadvantaged households 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 27 Oct 2020 or 
Leader 
 

P
age 24



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
5 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Finance, 
Portfolio Holder 
for Growth and 
Commercialisatio
n, Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 Cabinet 27 Oct 2020 or 
Leader 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Acquisition 
project to 
purchase S106 
units 
 

To consider the business case relating 
to a potential acquisition project to 
purchase 7 s106 units within the 
district. 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 27 Oct 2020 or 
Leader 
 

P
age 25



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
6 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Place 
 
 
Daffodil Route 
Improvements 
 

To provide an update on potential 
improvements to the Daffodil Route 
between Pinchbeck Road and Johnson 
Hospital utilising section 106 funding to 
improve health and well being 
opportunities 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 27 Oct 2020 or 
Leader 
 

 
 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader) 
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 
 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

P
age 26

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Anita Goddard-Gill - Interim Housing Property Services Manager 

 

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 9 September 2020  

 

(Author):      Anita Goddard-Gill - Interim Housing Property Services Manager 

 

Subject: Marketing of Industrial Units 

 

Purpose: To set out the methodology for using commercial agents to provide targeted 

and additional resource to support the letting and management of commercial 

property 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
That the contents of this report are noted.  
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 At the July 2020 Performance Monitoring Panel (the Panel) a short presentation was given 

on the management of commercial assets. In addition reference was made to a report 

being prepared for the September meeting of the Policy Development Panel. That report 

will include, in addition to an update on commercial assets, proposed next steps in relation 

to the drafting of an updated Asset Management Plan, new Lettings Policy, a general 

update on matters such as budgets allocated for commercial property and priority spend 

items.  It was agreed that this update to Policy Development Panel in due course would be 

shared with the Panel. 

 

1.2 Following the agenda planning pre meet of the Panel points for clarification and further 

advice was sought by the Chair and Vice Chair from the Interim Housing Property Services 

Manager for the meeting of the Panel on 9th September, in written form. This included a 

lettings process which can be found in Appendix 1. 

 

1.3 Information was requested from the Interim Housing Property Services Manager on the role 

undertaken by commercial letting agents and why specific agents were chosen to represent 

the council in this task. In addition details relating to the use of NPS (Peterborough) Limited 

providing support to the Assets team on the management of commercial units owned by 

the council. Concerns were raised by the Chair and Vice Chair about this resource being 

sourced from Norfolk as opposed to more locally based.  

 

1.4 The Panel also wanted some further information on the management of the commercial 

estate in particular maintenance, tidiness and other tenant matters. This report provides 

further information regarding choice of letting agents and NPS (Peterborough) Limited. The 

commercial property and new Lettings Policy report to the Policy Development Panel 

meeting on 15th September will be shared with this Panel in due course. This report should 

help provide further background on the overall management of the commercial estate 

including maintenance, tidiness and other tenant aspects, matters raised with the Interim 

Housing Property Services Manager at the agenda planning pre meet. Officers will be in 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



attendance at the Panel meeting to provide a verbal update on the content of that report 

which by then will have been published.  

 

1.5 A final question was raised at the Panel pre meet around how the team currently tap into 

local intelligence and this will be covered in the section on letting agents and letting 

procedures below (sections 1.9 and 1.10 in the main). 

 

1.6 The council owns and manages five industrial estates at various locations across the 

District totalling some 50 units, 49 of which are currently let and income producing. These 

are situated in the towns of Crowland (Pinnacle Close & Horseshoe Yard), Sutton Bridge 

(Railway Lane), Holbeach (Fleet Road) and Spalding (Benner Road)  

 

1.7 The majority of the units are small (around 600sqft) with the exception of units on Pinnacle 

Close in Crowland which are larger (over 1,000sqft)  

 

1.8 Demand for units tend to be from the immediate area although units in Crowland do draw in 

interest from businesses based in Peterborough and the wider neighbouring areas. 

Peterborough and its wider area has historically seen lots of demand for units of this size 

traditionally outstripping supply. Consequently it is important to seek to source potential 

occupiers from as wider area as possible to ensure maximum occupancy and income can 

be maintained. Using letting agents who are active in these areas to market of vacant 

commercial units in this area is prudent.  

 

1.9 Tenant’s when selecting prospective units to let take account of factors such as local 

suppliers for products they need, labour supply, transport links, price of and flexibility of 

terms on which they can lease units as well as a whole range of other matters relating to 

competing units on the market to let. Local commercial letting agents tend to be well 

connected with individual business needs, complemented where possible with our own 

business and market intelligence from the council’s Inward Investment team.  

 

1.10 Knowing the market, who is active, how requirements can be met and terms upon which 

tenants will proceed is critical to securing the right occupier for the Council’s commercial 

property. Officers hold part of this market intelligence but the agents have a significant 

amount themselves. With only a small portfolio of commercial units (50 in total), with 

traditionally few coming vacant, Asset Officers are not “in the market” and as such reliant 

on advice and support from commercial property letting agents who are specialists in this 

field.  

 

1.11 Commercial letting agents therefore who know the market well and understand what other 

units may be available outside of the council’s ownership thus offering a good insight into 

not only the business, if they are local, but also how specific units available across the 

council’s portfolio may be best suited to a prospective tenants needs, These agents are 

effectively leasing commercial property on a daily basis across the local area. Some of 

these have a regional and wider national client base so can offer sound insight into a range 

of matters including trends in lease terms, competing units, asking rents and the base 

terms together with types and levels of incentives provided by Landlords when these are 

being let. 

 

1.12 It is quite typical for local government to use agents to let commercial property. Further the 

council has faced difficulties in recruiting to posts within the property/ assets teams and the 

Page 28



opportunity to use commercial agents to let commercial properties provides a focussed and 

much needed resource when recruitment continues to be problematic.  

 

1.13 Letting agents the council have used so far include Peterborough based Barker Storey 

Matthews and Spalding based Longstaff, on a joint agency basis to let units at Pinnacle 

Close, Crowland. Spalding based Brown & Co have been used to market units at Fleet 

Road Holbeach as and when these become vacant. Council officers have historically 

sought to let vacant units themselves but for the reasons outlined above, local market 

knowledge and capacity principally this is changing.  

 

1.14 The council secures quotes from letting agents to ensure best value is obtained and once 

appointed monitor their performance. One of the roles for the Strategic Property Manager 

(recruitment for this vacant post in progress) will be to work closely with the Assets team to 

resource plan for future asset related work including lettings. It is important whilst this 

resource planning work is underway and beyond that we utilise local agents to provide the 

right technical support and capacity as units become available. 

 

1.15 A similar picture exists with the management of the council’s commercial estate. Prior to 

and following the recent departure of the Assets Officer,  NPS (Peterborough), a specialist 

local supplier of estates, valuation, building surveying and other property related disciplines 

have provided some technical support to the Council around estate management. Given 

difficulties in recruiting to key posts, local knowledge and tested estates practices the 

council is looking at strengthening that relationship to provide estates and building 

compliance services going forward as necessary. This would be procured with the use of 

existing pre procured frameworks. A proposal is being worked up is for them to provide 

essential technical and professional resource, to support the management of the 

commercial and operational estate in particular implementation of the new Lettings policy 

on the granting of new leases, a task with existing staff resources the Assets team would 

currently be unable to fulfil. An Officers Recommendation Report would follow in due 

course setting out the basis of a formalised arrangement to provide estates and building 

compliance support. 

 

1.16 NPS (Peterborough) Limited are a joint venture partnership between Peterborough City 

Council and Norse Group (a company wholly owned by Norfolk County Council). With over 

10,000 employees the group offer a very broad range of services to local authorities 

including a full multidisciplinary property service. All staff providing estates services to 

South Holland are based in their office in central Peterborough. Once the new Lettings 

Policy is approved (at Policy Development Panel on 15th September and Cabinet in 

October), a substantial lease renewal programme will commence and NPS (Peterborough) 

will provide essential resource to the council to deliver this. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

2.1 In seeking to secure additional resource Panel members to note that when selecting local 

agents for letting and a different agent for managing the estate this is based on what level 

of expertise they can provide the council with and value for money, using where possible 

pre-approved suppliers from pre procured frameworks. This process will continue whilst 

Council officers recruit to key asset and property posts and then match skills and resource 

with current and future work streams.   

 

 

Page 29



3.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

3.1 The provision of cost effective high quality professional and technical resource procured 

from and delivered by local well regarded commercial property specialists providing much 

needed capacity in areas where the council has found difficulty in recruiting. 

 

3.2 Established relationships with agents who are able to provide expert market advice on the 

demand for new industrial units and in certain cases training for existing Council staff and 

access to a wider network of property specialists active in the local area. 

 

 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

4.1 Constitutional & Legal 

 

4.1.1 The approach in this report meets our legal and constitutional duties. 

 

4.2 Reputation 

 

4.2.1 The process outlined demonstrates that the council is engaging with agents according to 

their location and knowledge of the market to let vacant units as and when they become 

available and manage/ let income producing assets. 

 

5.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

5.1 Crowland and Deeping St Nicholas, Holbeach Town, Spalding and Sutton Bridge. 

 

 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Anita Goddard-Gill, Richard Hodgson Interim Housing Property Asset 

Services Manager, Executive Manager Delivery 

Telephone Number  

Email: Anita.Goddard-Gill@sholland.gov.uk, Richard.Hodgson@Breckland-

Sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

 

Exempt Decision: N  

 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service  

 

 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
 
To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 9 September 2020 
 
Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer 
 
Subject:  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme 
 
Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 

inclusion on its Work Programme.   
 
1.2 Issues 

 
1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
 consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
 referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  The appendix will be updated as new 
 items are identified. 
 
1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
 shows: 
 

 The name of the task group 

 What it wants to achieve 

 Key dates 

 Membership of the task group 

 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 

standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 
 
2.2 To do nothing. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 

Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date. 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 

with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
 the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  
 Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
 Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk  Management; 
 Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
 Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
 one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 
 
5.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 

suitability of the subject, taking into account considerations such as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities.  

 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 

Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
 
Name and Post:  Christine Morgan 
Telephone Number: 01775 764454 
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix A Work Programme Calendar 2020/21 
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2020/21 

Page 34



 APPENDIX A 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 

ITEMS 2020/21 
 
 

 
Date of 
Meeting 

 
Agenda items 

 

9 September 
2020 

 Update report on progress of the Digital Work Programme 
(Six-monthly updates requested at meeting held 29/1/20) 

 Marketing/Renovation of Industrial units – six monthly update 
report requested at meeting held 29/1/20 

10 November 
2020 

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last updates 
received 18 June 2019 and 11 September 2019). Update 
dependent upon when facilities can re-open post-COVID and 
potential changes to their operation 

 Q2 Performance Report 20/21 – To review the Council’s 
performance for the reporting period 

27 January 
2021 

 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety 
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of 
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly 
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six 
months by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. 
Last discussed at meetings on 18/6/19 and 11/9/19, with a 
COVID-relevant update on 8/7/20. 

 Economic Development and Inward Investment update – 
(last update received 11 September 2019, updated reports to 
be on a six-monthly basis, to include an executive summary 
alongside the main report). COVID-relevant update received 
8/7/20 

 Untidy sites – information to be compiled, highlighting what 
options the authority had, how properties could be brought 
back into use, and providing an update on individual 
buildings 

 Corporate Enforcement – update report on how the Authority 
is addressing the various types of enforcement, following the 
Authority-wide reorganisation (last update 6/2/18, 31/7/18, 
30/1/19 and 12/11/19). Six-monthly  

 Six-monthly update report on Refuse Collection from Private 
Drives (first reported 8/7/20) 

 Q3 Performance Report – To review the Council’s 
performance for the time period 

 Kitchen and Bathroom replacement work – update report (if 
still relevant) 

17 March 2021  Update report on progress of the Digital Work Programme 

 (Six monthly updates requested at meeting held 29/1/20) 

Items to be 
allocated when 
2021/22 
Schedule of 
Meetings 
confirmed 

 Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (revised following CV19) – 
considered at Council 29/7/20 – Diarise to monitor 
achievement against the 2 schedules considered – April-July 
2021 

Page 35



Items yet to be 
allocated. 

 Information report on future commercialisation projects 
(Richard Hodgson/Christine Marshall – last update 13 
November 2018). 

 Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation. 

 Cost of running the South Holland Centre  

 What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost 
shunting, and how can this be avoided?  

 
 
For future consideration 
 

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed). 

 Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny 
 

**************** 
To be considered annually: 
 

1) The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final 
Report to Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was: 

 
That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance. 
 
 
A meeting took place on 24 January 2019. Suggest next meeting January 2021 
 

2) Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – Tour undertaken 5 
September 2019, next tour to be undertaken in September 2020  

 

Page 36



APPENDIX B 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

Public Open Spaces Task 
Group 

To be confirmed at first meeting. 12 
November 
2019 

TBC B Alcock 
J R Astill 
A C Beal 
CJTH Brewis 
PA Redgate 

TBC 

Public Toilets Task Group To review public toilets in the district, looking at 
location, cleaning regimes, usage, reasons for 
closure and running costs. 
To use information gathered to ensure value 
for money, good service, and that the right 
money was spent in the right place. 

6 February 
2018 

23 April 2018 J R Astill 
CJTH Brewis 
T A Carter 
GK Dark 
(Chairman) 
PC Foyster 

30 January 2019 
To Cabinet 12 
Feb 2019  
Response from 
Cabinet to PMP 
20 Mar 2019. 
Update on 
progress PMP 
11/9/19 & 29/1/20. 

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group 

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically: 

 To consider performance, in relation to the 
contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities; 

1 December 
2015 

21 January 
2016 

J R Astill 
T A Carter 
G K Dark 
(Chairman) 
J L King 
A M Newton 

30 August 2016 
To Cabinet 8 
November 2016 
 
Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17, 

P
age 37



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and 

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring. 

7/11/17, 13/11/18, 
8/06/19 & 11/9/19. 
Next update was 
due 10/11/20 

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group 

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance. 

15 June 
2016 

Date to be 
confirmed. 

GR Aley 
JR Astill 
GK Dark 
PC Foyster 
AM Newton 

Meeting took 
place on 24 
January 2019. 
 
Suggest Jan 21 

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group 

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward. 
 
Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision. 
 
Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 

6 November 
2012  

21 November 
2012  

B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 
 
 
   

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013  
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013. 
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013 
Updates to PMP: 
8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter.  

P
age 38



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

this once the information becomes 
available. 

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future. 

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014 

To be 
confirmed 

To be 
confirmed 

To be confirmed 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2a) Performance Monitoring Panel - 8 July 2020
	2b) Performance Monitoring Panel - 13 July 2020
	7 Key Decision Plan
	8 Marketing of Industrial Units
	Appendix 1 for Marketing of Industrial Units flow chart

	10 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


